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Notice is hereby given that the 25" Annual General Meeting of the Members of SKYLINE INDIA
LIMITED will be held on Thursday, 30" September, 2021 at 11:00 A.M. at its Registered Office at 1E/4,
Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110055 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company including the
Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31* March, 2021 and the Statement of Profit and Loss of the
Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2021 and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajeev Gupta (DIN:00482252), the Director of the

Company, who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3. Re-appointment of auditors

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 made thereunder and other applicable rules, if any, under the said Act (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) M/s. NIDHI
BANSAL & CO., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 022073N), be and is hereby appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 years commencing from the conclusion
of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of Twenty Eighth consecutive Annual General
Meeting at a remuneration to be fixed by the by the Board of Directors of the Company, with
mutual consent of auditors.”

Special Business:

4. Appointment of Neelam Jain as an independent director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Neelam Jain (DIN: 09288650), who was appointed as an additional and
independent director, pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and 161 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company,
approvals and recommendations of the nomination and remuneration committee, and that of the
Board, be and is hereby appointed as an independent director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a
period up to 5 years from 24" August 2021.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of
the powers to any committee of directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s)
/authorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”
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Reappointment of Ms. Vandana Gupta as Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an special resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152 read with schedule IV and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014, including any statutory amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, Ms. Vandana Gupta (DIN: 00013488),
Independent director of the company, whose period of office is liable expire on 22/12/2021, and
who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence under Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is eligible for reappointment for a second term under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, be reappointed as an
Independent directorof the company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term
of 5 consecutive years commencing from 30/09/2021 till 30/09/2026.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of
the powers to any committee of directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) /
authorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Reappointment of Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sanghi as Managing Director

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made there under, as amended from
time to time, read with Schedule V to the Act, and Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to the approval of Central Government or other Government authority/agency/board, if any,
the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Rajesh
Kumar Sanghi as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 Years upon the terms and
conditions of the said appointment in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr.
Rajesh Kumar Sanghi.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 read with Part I and
Section I of Part II of Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof), applicable clauses of the
Articles of Association of the Company and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment
of remuneration to Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sanghi, Managing Director of the Company, on the terms
and conditions including remuneration as decided by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of
the powers to any committee of directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) /
authorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

For Skyline India Limited
Date: 1* September 2021
Place: Delhi

Sd/-

Dinesh Kumar Shindi
(Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer)



SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED

Regd. Office : 1E/4, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110055
Email Id: skvlineindia96@gmail.com; Tel No. : +91 11 23541110
CIN: L51909DL1996PLC075875, Website: www.skylineindia.co.in

Notes:

1. In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, Ministry of Home Affairs has from time to time
through various circulars and guidelines has clearly indicated the precautions to be taken if there is a
social gathering to stop the spread of novel coronavirus. We assure that we have proper arrangements
and precautions being taken at the venue of AGM. There is sufficient space so that social distancing
of shareholders attending the meeting can be maintained. Further precaution will be taken that none
of the attendees will be allowed to the venue without the use of masks and hand sanitizers. In
addition to that health checkups will be done of the attendees so as to protect the spread of any kind
of disease.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED.
THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten per cent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act proxy for any other person or member.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the Meeting are
requested to send at the Registered Office of the Company, a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolution, authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at this General Meeting.

4. Queries proposed to be raised at the Annual General Meeting may be sent to the Company at its
registered office at least seven days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting to enable the
management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday,
24™ September, 2021 to Monday, 30™ September, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the
AGM.

6. Members / Proxies should fill-in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting and bring their
attendance slip along with their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting.

7. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of name
will be entitled to vote.

8. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are opened for inspection at the Registered Office
of the Company on all working days, except Sunday between 2 P.M. to 4 P.M. upto the date of the
Annual General Meeting.

9. Members are requested :
1) To quote their folio Nos. in all correspondence.
ii) To note that no gifts will be distributed at the meeting.
iii) In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
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of names will be entitled to vote.

10. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail
addresses for receiving all communications including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc from the
Company electronically.

11. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member of the Company may nominate a person
on whom the shares held by him/her shall vest in the event of his/her death. Member(s) desirous of
availing this facility may submit nomination in the prescribed Form SH — 13 to the Company/RTA in
case shares are held in Physical form, and to their respective depository participant, if held in electronic
form.

E-VOTING DETAILS

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i)  The voting period begins on Monday 27" September 2021 at 09:00A.M and ends on Wednesday 29"
September 2021 at 05:00 P.M During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 23™ September 2021 may cast their vote

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii)  Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the

meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities
in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and

passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be
able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating

seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetingsfor

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDLis given below:
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Type of Login Method
shareholders

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
Individual through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
Shareholders available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
holding The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
securities in arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
Demat  mode www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
with CDSL Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companieswhere the evoting is in progress
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting
service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system
ofall e-Voting Service Providers ie.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-
Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
availableathttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistrat
ion

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link
availableon =~ www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLoginThe system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be able to see the e-Voting optionwhere the evoting is in
progressand also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
Individual e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
Shareholders  holding | following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
securities in demat | Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is
mode with NSDL launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS “Portal or click at
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https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
(holding securities in | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
demat mode) login | e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-
through their | Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be
Depository Participants redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can
holding securities in Demat contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor  contact at

022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can
holding securities in Demat contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
mode with NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(v)  Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings forPhysical shareholders and shareholders other
than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
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2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders andother than individual shareholders
holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact

Company/RTA.
Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in
OR Date of Birth (DOB) dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in

the company records in order to login.

e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field.

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.
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Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to
the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to
log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; skylineindia96@gmail.com , if they
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
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scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System,
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-
23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,
MarathonFuturex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or

send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43

BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTOR BEING APPOINTED or RE-APPOINTED

PARTICULARS Mr. Rajeev Gupta
Date of Appointment 03/08/1998
Qualifications Graduate
Directorship held in other public companies 0
Membership/Chairmanship of Committees 0

of other Public Companies

Number of shares held in the Company 195795

Disclosure  of relationship between None

Directors inter-se

Date: 1% September 2021
Place: Delhi

For Skyline India Limited

Sd/-

Dinesh Kumar Shindi
(Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer)
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Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L51909DL1996PLC075875
Name of the Company: SKYLINE INDIA LMITED
Registered office: 1E/4, JHANDEWALAN EXTENSION, NEW DELHI DL 110055

Name of the Member(s)
Registered address
E-mail Id

Folio No/ Clint Id
DPID

I/ We being the member of ...........ccccevviiiieveinennen. shares, hereby appoint

Lo NI, ot e
AdAress: ..o
E-mail Id: ...
SIGNATUTE ..ottt ettt e e ereeeeeneeeenes or failing him

2 NI Lo e
AdAress: ...
E-mail Id: ...
SIgNATUIE: ...\ttt

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 25" Annual General
Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on Thursday, the 30" day of September, 2021 at 11:00
a.m. at the registered office of the Company situated at 1E/4, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110055
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S. RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST
NO.

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of
the company including the Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st
March, 2021 and the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajeev Gupta (DIN:00482252),
the Director of the Company, who is liable to retire by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the said Act and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
made thereunder and other applicable rules, if any, under the said Act
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) M/s. NIDHI BANSAL & CO., Chartered
Accountants (Registration No. 022073N), be and is hereby appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 years
commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till
the conclusion of Twenty Eighth consecutive Annual General Meeting
at a remuneration to be fixed by the by the Board of Directors of the
Company, with mutual consent of auditors.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Neeclam Jain (DIN: 09288650), who was
appointed as an additional and independent director, pursuant to
Sections 149, 152 and 161 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time
being in force), Articles of Association of the Company, approvals
and recommendations of the nomination and remuneration committee,
and that of the Board, be and is hereby appointed as an independent
director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period up to 5 years from
24™ August 2021.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to any committee of
directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) /
authorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and
things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
special resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152 read with
schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors), Rules, 2014, including any statutory amendment(s) thereto
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, Ms. Vandana
Gupta (DIN: 00013488), Independent director of the company, whose
period of office is liable expire on 22/12/2021, and who has submitted
a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is eligible for
reappointment  for a second term under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, be reappointed as an
Independent directorof the company, not liable to retire by rotation, to
hold office for a second term of 5 consecutive years commencing from
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30/09/2021 till 30/09/2026.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to any committee of
directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) /
authorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and
things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197
and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) and the rules made there under, as amended from time to time,
read with Schedule V to the Act, and Articles of Association of the
Company and subject to the approval of Central Government or other
Government authority/agency/board, if any, the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr.
Rajesh Kumar Sanghi as Managing Director of the Company for a
period of 5 Years upon the terms and conditions of the said
appointment in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board
and Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sanghi.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 197 read with Part I and Section I of Part II of Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof),
applicable clauses of the Articles of Association of the Company and
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for payment of remuneration to Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sanghi, Managing
Director of the Company, on the terms and conditions including
remuneration as decided by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to any committee of
directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) /
authorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and
things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Signed this ..... day of...... 2021
Affix Revenue

Stamp
Signature of Shareholder .................cooeviiiiiiininn.
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Signature of Proxy holder(s) ...........cccoovviiiiiininin.n.

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L51909DL1996PLCO075875
REG OFFICE: 1E/4, JHANDEWALAN EXTENSION, NEW DELHI DL 110055

ATTENDANCE SLIP

25™ Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, the 30" day of September 2021 at 11:00 A.M

Name of attending MEMDET ........ooiiiiii e e e
Regd. Folio No./DP ID/Client ID ..ottt e
No. of shares held...... ... e

I certify that I am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company and hereby
record my presence at the 25" Annual General Meeting of the Company on Thursday, the 30™ day of
September 2021 at 11:00 A.M at registered office of the Company at 1E/4, Jhandewalan Extension, New
Delhi-110055.

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN (E-VOTING EVENT USER ID PASSWORD / PIN
NO)
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Director’s Report

Your Directors are delighted to present the 25™ Annual Report of your Company together with the Audited
Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31* March, 2021.

Dear Members,

1. Financial Results

The Financial Performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 is summarized below

(INR).
Particulars For the year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Total Revenue 860,603 4,005,321
Total Expenses 7,866,449 6,229,830
Profit/loss before exceptional items and tax (7,005,846) (2,224,509)
Exceptional items - -
Earlier year Tax - 64,593
Current year Tax - -
Deferred Tax (6,162) -
MAT credit entitlement - -
Profit/loss After Taxation (6,999,684) (2,289,102)
Earning Per Equity Share -1.64 -0.54
2.  Dividend

The Company has suffered losses, due to this your Directors regret their inability to recommended
dividend on equity shares for the year under review.

3. Reserves

The Company has suffered losses so no amount is proposed to be transferred to Reserves for the year
under review.

4. Year under Review & Future Outlook

During the year under review, company suffered losses but Company expects to work better in future.

5. Change in the nature of business, if any
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During the year, there is no change in the nature of business activity of the company.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report

During the period between the end of the financial year of the company and the date of the report,
there are no material changes and commitments which affect the financial position of the company.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

During the year, there are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies:

The Company has no Subsidiary. During the year, no company has become or ceased as
subsidiary/Joint-venture/Associate of the company.

Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
companies included in the consolidated financial statement:

During the year, no consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the company as the
Company has no subsidiary company, associates and/or joint venture.

Deposits:
Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during the year
under review. The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act is as under-

(a) accepted during the year Nil

(b) remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the Nil
year

(©) whether there has been any default in repayment of | No

deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year
and if so, number of such cases and the total amount

involved
6] at the beginning of the year Nil
(i1) | maximum during the year Nil

(iii) | at the end of the year Nil
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11. Auditors:
M/s NIDHI BANSAL & CO., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, (Registration No. 022073N),
were re-appointed as the Auditors of the Company in the 25" Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 28" Annual General Meeting in accordance with the provisions of Section 139(1) of the
Act read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

12. Auditors’ Report:

The company always strives to present an unqualified Financial Statement. No such qualifications are
present in auditor’s report.

13. Share Capital:

A | Issue of equity shares with differential During the year, company has not issued any
rights: equity shares with differential rights.
B | Issue of sweat equity shares During the year, company has not issue any
Sweat equity shares.
C | Issue of employee stock options During the year, company has not issued
employee stock options.
D | Provision of money by company for Rs Nil

purchase of its own shares by employees or
by trustees for the benefit of employees

E | Bonus Shares No bonus shares were issued during the year
under review.

F | Conversion of Warrants No such conversion.

G | Share forfeited during the period NIL

14. Extract of the annual return (MGT-9):

In accordance with companies Act 2013, the annual return in the prescribed format is available at the
website of the company www.skylineindia.co.in/annual-return .

15. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo:
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The company lay focus on Conservation of energy with studies, discussions and analysis, which are
undertaken regularly for further improvement. In terms of requirements of Section 134(3)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of Companies(Accounts)Rules,2014 the required information
relating to, conservation of energy, technology absorptions and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
are Annexed hereto as Annexure-A

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

In terms of section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the provisions of Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.

Directors and key managerial personnel:

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Appointment:

No Director/KMP appointed during the year under review.
Cessation

No Director/KMP resigned during the year under review.
Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajeev Gupta, Director of the
Company, retires by rotation at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

KMPs and Senior Management Personnel of the Company are:

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sanghi— Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Rajeev Gupta— Whole-time Director

Ms. Megha Gupta- Independent Director

Mr. Vandana Gupta- Independent Director

Mr. Gaur Hari Sanghi- Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Shindi- Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

A

Declaration by Independent Directors

Your Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they met with the criteria of
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independence as prescribed under the aforesaid Section and Clause.

19. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year on 29" July 2020, 07™ September
2020, 13™ November 2020, 23" November 2020, and 13™ February 2021.
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Name Category Designation No. of Board | Last AGM
Meetings attended
attended

Mr. Rajesh Kumar | Executive Director | Managing 5 Yes

Sanghi Director

Mr. Rajeev Gupta | Executive Director | Whole-time 5 Yes

director

Ms. Megha Gupta | Non-Executive & | Director 1 Yes

Independent
Ms. Vandana Gupta | Non-Executive & | Director 5 Yes
Independent

Mr. Gaur Hari| Key Managerial | Chief Financial 5 Yes

Sanghi personnel officer

Mr. Dinesh Kumar | Key Managerial | Company 5 Yes

Sindhi personnel secretary

20. Committees of the Board:

During the year, in accordance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder the Board reconstituted following Committees. Proper no. of board and board committee
meeting were held during the period under review and that too in compliance with the applicable
provision of The Companies act 2013 and other rules and regulation. The Committees are as follows:

*  Audit Committee
Meetings held: 29" July 2020, 07" September 2020, 13" November 2020, and 13" February 2021.

*  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Meetings held: 29™ July 2020, 07" September 2020, 13™ November 2020, and 13" February 2021.

21. Board Evaluation:

The Companies Act, 2013 provides that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of
its own performance and that of its Committees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013, states that the performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done
by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

The board of directors in consultation with Nomination & Remuneration Committee has carried out
an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and individual directors pursuant to
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors
on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board
processes, information and functioning, etc.
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The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the
Committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness
of Committee meetings, etc.
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The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of
the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to
the Board and Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on
the key aspects of his role.

The evaluation of Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and that of the Chairman
and Non — Independent Directors were carried out by the Independent Directors.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-Independent Directors,
performance of the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into
account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors. The same was discussed in the
board meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of
the Board, its committees and individual directors was also discussed.

The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall engagement of the
Board and its Committees with the Company.

Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration:

Your Company has a policy to have an appropriate mix of executive and independent directors to
maintain the independence of the Board, and separate its functions of governance and management.

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director, and other matters
provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board, is
attached as Annexure — B to the Board Report. Further the remuneration paid to the Directors is as
per the terms laid out in the nomination and remuneration policy of the Company.

Risk management policy and Internal Control:

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Board and also has in
place a mechanism to identify access, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business objectives.
Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuing basis.

Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has established a “Whistle Blower Policy” and Vigil Mechanism for directors and
employees to report to the appropriate authorities concerns about the unethical behavior actual or
suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct policy and provides safeguards
against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the company.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186:
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Particulars and details of loan given, investments made or guarantees given and securities provided, if
any, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Contracts and arrangements with related parties:

During the year under review, some contracts/arrangements/transactions, has been entered by the
company with related parties.

However, as a matter of Company’s policy, all contracts/arrangements/transactions, if any, which are
entered by the company with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s
length basis and details and prescribed particulars of all such transactions (if any), are disclosed in the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

Secretarial Audit Report:

In terms of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, M/s CKA &
Associates was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the F.Y. 2020-21. The report of Secretarial Audit in Form MR -3 is annexed to & forms
part of this Report as Annexure -C.

28. Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the
Act.

29. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)
(e)

Pursuant to the provisions contained in Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board to the best of its knowledge and belief confirm that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31* March, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under schedule III to the Act, have been followed
and no material departures have been made from the same;

the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for
that period,

the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating efficiently; and
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the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars of Employees:

There are no employees employed throughout the financial year who were in receipt of remuneration
of Rs. 60 Lacs or more or employed for part of the year who were in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 5
lacs or more a month under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Remuneration) Rules, 2014.

Internal Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under,
the Company had appointed M/s R S Goel & Company, Firm registration No-023056N (Practicing
Chartered Accountant) as an internal auditor for the financial year 2020-21.

32. Internal Financial Control and Their Adequacy

The Board has adopted policies and procedure for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its asset, the prevention
and detection of fraud and error, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosure.

The Company has an adequate internal controls system commensurate with its size and the nature of
its business. All the transactions entered into by the Company are duly authorized and recorded
correctly. All operating parameters are monitored and controlled. The top management and the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors review the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
systems from time to time.

33. Corporate governance:

Regulation 27(2) as per clause 15 of Chapter IV of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 is not applicable
to the Company as the paid up capital and net worth were less than 10 Crore and 25 Crore
respectively as on 31st March 2021 (Previous Year).

The company has received a certificate that none of the directors on the Board of Skyline India
Limited has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the
Companies by Securities and exchange board of India/ ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
authority.

34. Management Discussion and Analysis:

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), highlighting the important aspects of the
business of the Company is enclosed with this Report.
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35. Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder:

The Company’s Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
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Act) and Rules framed thereunder. Internal Complaints Committees have also been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The Company conducts sessions for employees
across the organization to build awareness amongst employees about the Policy and the provisions of
Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review.
Human Resources:

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. We focus on all
aspects of the employee lifecycle. This provides holistic experience for the employees as well. During
their tenure at the Company, employees are motivated through various skill development programs.
We create effective dialogue through our communication channels to ensure effective dialogue
through our communication channels to ensure that feedback reach the relevant team, including
leadership.

Your Company continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing
basis. A number of programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your
Company thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

Segment-wise performance
The Company is into single reportable segment only.
Company’s response to Covid-19:

In December, 2019, the COVID-19 pandemic created a world crisis. To control the impact of the
pandemic the Government of India declared a nationwide lock-down w.e.f. 24th March, 2020, of all
economic activities. This impacted the economy adversely. Your Company’s - operations were also
affected. The situation improved after a a few months operations were resumed. The affect is visible
on the reduced turnover of the company. Your Company’s management and employees worked very
hard to minimize the impact and ensured that operations were resumed and full safety was maintained.
This extraordinary effort minimized the impact on Company’s performance. The Company has also
distributed hand sanitizers and masks to the employees/workers of the company. The Company
continues to monitor the situation of COVID -19 and operating in line with the guidelines /
instructions issued by the Central / State Government from time to time for health and safety of the
employees.
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SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED
CIN: -L51909DL1996PLC075875
Regd. Office: 1E/4, Jhandewalan Extn. New Delhi -110055

BALANCE SHEET as on 31.03.21

(Figures in Rs. )

Particulars Note | As at 31st march | As at 31st march
No. | 2021 2020
1 2 3 4
(1) ASSETS
Non-current assets 187,900 157,799
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 181,768 100
(b) Capital work-in-progress - -
(c) Investment Property - -
(d) Goodwill - -
(e) Other Intangible assets - -
(f) Intangible assets under evelopment - -
(g) Biological Assets other than bearer plants - -
(h) Financial Assets 157,699
(1) Investments - -
(ii) Trade receivables - -
(iii) Loans - -
(iv) Others (to be specified) 4 - 157,699
(i) Deferred tax assets (net) 6,132 -
(j) Other non-current assets - -
(2) Current assets 21,814,121 28,700,063
(a) Inventories - -
(b) Financial Assets 2,007,550 2,430,249
(1) Investments - -
(i1) Trade receivables 5 409,625 1,569,837
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,597,926 860,412
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above - -
(v) Loans - -
(vi) Others (to be specified) - -
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 489,137 104,622
(d) Other current assets 8 19,317,434 26,165,193
Total Assets 22,002,021 28,857,832
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - -
Equity 20,975,327 27,975,011
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(a) Equity Share capital

42,590,637

42,590,637

(b) Other Equity

10

(21,615,310)

(14,615,626
)

LIABILITIES

1,026,694

882,821

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables

(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those
specified in item (b)

(b) Provisions

(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

11

(d) Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

1,026,694

882,821

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(i1) Trade payables

(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those
specified in item (c)

(b) Other current liabilities

12

1,026,694

882,821

(¢) Provisions

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

22,002,021

28,857,832

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For NIDHI BANSAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

sd/-

(Nidhi Bansal)
Partner

M.No. 508641

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

sd/-
(Rajesh Kumar Sanghi)
Managing Director
DIN: 00482040
12, Golf Links, New Delhi - 110003
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Audit Firm Regn. No. 022073N sd/-
202, Amber Tower, Commercial (Rajeev Gupta)
Complex, Azadpur, Delhi -110033 Whole Time Director
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324 C 3, Shalimar Garden, Extension 1,
Sahibabad, Uttar Pradesh -201010

sd/- sd/-
(Gaur Hari Sanghi) (Dinesh Kumar Shindi)
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
PAN:-EEZPS9353K M.No. 48815
12, Golf Links, Lodi Road H.O. Delhi 110003 Ward no. 6 dil khushal bagh shahpura
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SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED
CIN: -L51909DL1996PLC075875

Regd. Office: 1E/4, Jhandewalan Extn. New Delhi -110055

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS A/C as on 31.03.21

(INR)

Particulars

Note
No.

Figures for the
current reporting
period

Figures  for
previous
period

the

reporting

Revenue From Operations

13

845,200

2,703,294

I

Other Income

14

15,403

1,302,027

I

Total Income (I+1I)

860,603

4,005,321

v

EXPENSES

Operational Expenses

372,730

2,101,525

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods,
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress

Employee benefits expense

15

911,817

458,660

Finance costs

16

2,429,896

5,050

Depreciation and amortization expense

37,020

Other expenses

17

4,114,986

3,664,595

Total expenses (IV)

7,866,449

6,229,830

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and

tax (I- IV)

(7,005,846)

(2,224,509)

VI

Exceptional Items

VII

Profit/(loss) before tax

(V-VD

VIII

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Earlier year tax

64,593

(3) Deferred tax

(6,162)

(4) Mat Credit Entitlement

IX

Profit (Loss) for the period from
continuing operations (VII-VIII)

(6,999,684)

(2,289,102)

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations

XI

Tax expense of discontinued operations

XII

Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations

(after tax) (X-XI)
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XII | Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss ) ]
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will
XIV | not be reclassified to profit or loss ) )
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss i i
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will
be reclassified to profit or loss ) )
Total Comprehensive Income for the
XV period (XII+XIV)(Comprising Profit i i
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income
for the period)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing
XVI operati(.)n):
(1) Basic -1.64 -0.54
(2) Diluted -1.64 -0.54
Earnings per equity share (for
discontinued
XVII | operation):
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted
Earnings per equity share(for
Discontinued
XVIII | & continuing operations)
(1) Basic -1.64 -0.54
(2) Diluted -1.64 -0.54
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31°" MARCH , 2021
| Amount Amount Amount
Paticulars (Rs.) (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) (Rs.)
| 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Net Profit Before Tax (7,005,845.83) (2,289,101.84)
Adjustment For |
Profit on sale of fixed
assets - -
Interest charged ‘ 2,417,409.00 16,598.00




SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED

Annual Report 2020-21

Amount w/off

228,975.86

2,001,662.84

Depreciation

37,020.00

Interest received

(15,403.00)

2,668,001.86

(1,302,027.00)

716,233.84

Operating Profit
Before Working
Capital Change

(4,337,843.97)

(1,572,868.00)

Changes in working

capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade
receivables

1,160,212.42

76,088.28

(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans
and Advances

157,699.00

27,070.00

(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans
and Advances

6,234,268.03

1,207,251.41

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade
payables

Increase/(Decrease) in Other
Current Liabilities

143,872.90

7,696,052.35

(1,064,220.23)

246,189.46

Cash generated
from Operation

3,358,208.38

(1,326,678.54)

Income Tax Paid /
(Refund)

Net Cash from
Operating
Activity

(A)

3,358,208.38

(A)

(1,326,678.54)

Investing activity

Increase / Decrease in Fixed
Assets

(218,687.79)

Change in Capital Work in
Progress

Interest
received

Net Cash from
Investing
Activity

(B)

(218,687.79)

(B)

Financing Activities

Proceeds from Share
capital

Repayment of Long Term
Borrowings

Interest Received

15,403.00

1,302,027.00
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Interest Paid (2,417,409.00) | {(2,402,006.00) (16,598.00) 1,285,429.00
Net Cash from
Financing
Activity (C) (2,402,006.00) (C) 1,285,429.00
]

Net (Increase /(Decrease) in A, B & C)

in Cash & Cash equivalents 737,514.59 (41,249.54)
Opening Cash & Cash Equilent 860,411.87 901,660.83
Closing Cash & Cash Equilent™ 1,597,925.74 860,411.87

* Comprises

Cash in hand 1,012,544.57 480,032.87

Cheques in hand

Balance with Banks

Current Accounts 265,347.10 77,070.93
Fixed Deposit 320,034.07 303,308.07
1,597,925.74 860,411.87
A. SCH
Equity EDU
Share LE
Capita NO.
1 8
Bala

Balanc | Chang | Nce
eatthe | es in | atthe
beginni | equity | End
ng of | share | Of

the capital | The
reporti | during | repor
ng the Ting
period | year perio
D
42,59, | pipate
637.00 3

.00
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SCH
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Other LE
Equity NO.
9
Exch [ Oth
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e of ) o |1461 (14,615,625.
renorti 5,625. 82)
ngp 82)
period
Change
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Total
Compr
ehensiv
e
Income
for the
year

Divide
nds -

Transfe
r to

retaine (6,999 (6,999,683.83)

d ) ) 683.8
earning 3)

S

Any
other
change
(to be -
specifi
ed)

Balanc
e at the
end of
the (21,61 (21,615,309.6
reporti 5,309. 5)
ng 65)
Period
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW

India is one of the fastest growing economies in Asia and the entire world. Especially in the transport and
logistics industry sector, India shows superior growth rates creating enhanced potential for foreign players.
The objective of this summary is to identify the market potential as well as the current demand in this
sector and to point out the investment perspectives, especially for European players. Certainly, climate
change affects these prospects. Hence, this summary exposes the current Indian situation and the main
challenges contributing to this. But despite these problems and also resulting from these, India offers a
high potential for investments as the current studies have already shown.

The transport and logistics sector is a pivotal fundament that is important for the development of a
country. Since the 1990s, the transportation infrastructure of India has undergone a significant change.
While in the 90s, the demand for transport grew at an annual rate of 10%, in the last decade the demand
in the transport and logistics industry grew along with the accelerating Indian GDP. This growth
increased the demand for practically all transport services.

Infrastructure sector is the cornerstone of the Indian economy and plays an important role in accelerating
the growth of India’s overall development. The sector covers wide range of sub-groups namely power,
roads, ports, railways, telecommunication amongst others. To implement an infrastructure program of
large scale, the Government of India has launched National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) in 2019, wherein
it has planned to invest about INR 102 lakh crores on infrastructure projects by 2024-25. Of the total, INR
102 lakh crore worth projects in NIP, 42% are under implementation, 19% are under development stage
and about 31% are in the conceptual stage currently. As per the NIP, the Central and State Government are
expected to have equal share of 39% in funding of the projects, whereas Private Sector will have 22%
share. Infrastructure is one of the core sectors that also attracts high foreign direct investments. Between
2000 and 2019, about US$ 25.6 Bn of inflows were recorded in verticals such as townships, construction
development projects and housing (Source: IBEF). Asian Development Bank has also announced a US$
100 Mn funding for the Indian infrastructure sector through the government promoted NIIF.

Road transport is the most dominant mode of transportation in terms of traffic share in infrastructure
sector. In 2019, 10,855 km of highways were constructed in India, increasing at a CAGR of 20.57% from
2014-2019 (Source: IBEF). It is estimated that National Highways Authority of India will generate about
Rs1 lakh crore in revenue from toll and wayside amenities during 2019-2023.

Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in Construction Development sector (townships, housing, built up
infrastructure and construction development projects) stood at US$ 25.66 billion during April 2000 to
March 2020, according to Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT). The logistics
sector in India is growing at a CAGR of 10.5% annually and is expected to reach US$ 215 billion in 2020.

Development of transportation and logistics-related infrastructure such as dedicated freight corridors,
logistics parks, free trade warehousing zones, and container freight stations are expected to improve
efficiency. Government reform initiatives, promotion of manufacturing and trade, improving investment
climate are expected to transform the industry and drive growth between 2017 and 2020.
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Economic reforms, trade cooperation, improved transportation infrastructure, and industrial growth is
ushering in increasing opportunities for the logistics service providers (LSPs) in India. Presently, the
Indian logistics industry is witnessing development and expansion of its existing infrastructure, emergence
of e-commerce specific logistics solutions, has a strong focus on manufacturing, but also has a large
presence of unorganized service providers.

INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENTS

India has become the prime destination for logistics service providers all over the world. The demand
for logistics services in India has being largely driven by the growth of the economy. The growth is
projected at 7-9% in next few years, with the Compounded Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) expected to
grow at rate of 7-8%. This growth is expected to gain greater momentum due to exponential growth of
the Indian economy. India is also experiencing a big retail boom as the buying capacity of the middle
and upper middle segment of the population have scaled new heights. Many large MNCs from the retail
industry are planning to set up operation in India and large local retailers are also planning to expand
their operations.

The Growth in the Indian economy in coming decade is likely to be driven by the increased activity in
the manufacturing and retail sectors. To enable these sectors to contribute effectively to India’s growth
the logistics sector will have to step up to provide value-enabling solutions for these sectors. This would
require actions on three fronts:

1. Creating an environment for graduating the Indian logistics market to provide value propositions in
logistics solutions.

2. Increasing the capability of the Indian Logistics Industry to provide such solutions.

8. Requiring Government and other regulatory mechanisms in the country to provide an enabling
environment for value propositions in logistics services.

Due to decades of growth and increasing globalization of the Indian economy Indian entrepreneurs
become active participants in business strategy issues which can take their business forward and make
them competitive. However old habits die hard. Therefore we still see numerous instances where little
premium is put on service delivery, quality and transparency in logistics services. Demand for logistics
solutions still gets conditioned by an undemanding, quality-neutral client used to a non-standard product
and service deliveries. Large logistics departments have come up within companies to manage this
‘chaos’ and lowest price frequently becomes the watch word for many companies rather than quality of
the solution provided.

OPPORTUNITIES

Companies in this industry ensure the provision of rail, air, and waterborne transportation; transit and
ground passenger, pipeline, postal, courier and messenger transportation services, and warehousing and
storage services; other services include scenic and sightseeing transportation. This industry depends
heavily on the health of the economy.

A positive economy will affect manufacturing output, commodity trade, consumer and business
spending, as well as leisure and business travel activity. Due to the fact that many costs are fixed, the
profitability of individual companies is determined by efficient operations and favorable labor and fuel
costs.

Fact and Figures of the Industry
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e According to the American Public Transportation Association (APTA), the following facts and
figures are relevant to the United States Transportation Industry:

e At least 1.1 million jobs are created or sustained in the United States each year due to the
availability of public transportation services.

e Americans board public transports at least 35 million times between Mondays to Fridays every
week.

e Public Transportation helps to reduce road congestion and fuel consumption as it helps to save
at least 450 million gallons of fuel and $21billion worth of congestion costs every year.

e For every $1 invested in the industry, a return in investment of about $4 could be reasonably
expected.

e For every $1 billion invested in the industry, at least 50,000 jobs are created and every $10
million invested could yield $30million in increased business sales.

e Public Transportation helps to reduce the country’s carbon emissions by at least 37 million
metric tons.

OUTLOOK

e Government initiatives to promote the manufacturing sector and exports are likely to increase
the demand for logistics functions. Trade with Asia, Europe, and North America are likely to
remain major drivers for freight forwarding and transportation companies in the region.

e Major investments by both public and private sectors in the last five years on infrastructure,
technology upgrades and expansion of sea and airport facilities, and dedicated logistics corridor
in the rail network are expected to strengthen the Indian logistics infrastructure.

e The booming e-commerce market in India is bringing in new opportunities for LSPs. The
evolving business model(s) in this space focuses on containing logistics and delivery costs.

e The expected implementation of nationwide uniform GST is likely to transform the distribution
structure of majority of industries as it eliminates the need for dedicated warehouses for each
individual administrative region.

RISK & CONCERNS

The various challenges faced by the logistic industry lead to high logistics costs incurred by the Indian
economy. This is despite the fact that cost of labor, one of the most significant contributors to logistics
costs in developed countries, is significantly cheaper in India. With regards to costs of spends on logistics,
India’s logistics sector accounts for 13% of the GDP of India. Major elements of logistics costs typically
include transportation, warehousing, inventory management and other value added services such as
packaging. What is worrying about the logistics costs in India is the distribution of costs across various
heads. In India, as much as 31% of the logistics costs is attributable to the ‘others’ category, which
primarily includes various types of process. The logistic costs as a percentage of total product cost in India
is in the range of 4-5 times that in developed countries. This is at a time when the quality of logistic
services provided is not of the highest standards. Also, worryingly, these costs have been showing a rising
trend. Fuel price hike sharply increases the cost of freight transport. Ever increasing congestions at ports
are resulting in high levels of ground rents required to be paid at CFS’s near the port. High levels of
inventories are being required to be maintained to guard against sudden disruptions in supply chain, all of
which adds to the cost.

Due to globalisation, declining trade barriers and an increasingly mobile workforce, the transportation and
logistics industry continues to enjoy above average growth. By expanding their service offerings both
upstream and downstream, transportation companies and logistics service providers are also becoming
masters of their supply chain, both forward and backward.

Growth through acquisitions, joint ventures and alliances are reshaping the dynamic industry. Under these
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conditions, new corporate strategies and processes are required.
Transportation and Logistics challenges:

e Maximizing revenues
e Meeting international financial reporting standards requirements
e Managing tax risks
e Managing fraud
e Mergers and acquisitions as facilitator of industry restructuring
e Opportunities in the emerging markets
e Financing transport infrastructure and public private partnerships
For and on Behalf of the Board
Skyline India Limited
Date: 1 September 2021 Sd/-
RAJESH KUMAR SANGHI)
Place:  New Delhi Chairman

DIN: 00482040
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Annexure - A
REPORT

Information under Section 134(4)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31* March, 2020.

Current Year Previous Year
2020-2021 2019-2020
A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
I) Power and Fuel Consumption
1) Electricity
a)Purchased Unit (kwh)
Total amount NIL NIL
Rate/ Unit (Rs/Kwh) NIL NIL
b)Own generation
1)Through Diesel NIL NIL
Generator Unit (Kwh) NIL NIL
Unit per litre of Diesel oil (Kwh) NIL NIL
Cost/Unit (Rs/ Kwh) NIL NIL
ii)Through Steam Turbine NIL NIL
Generator Unit (Lakh kwh) NIL NIL
Unit per tonne of fuel (kwh) NIL NIL
Cost/unit (Rs/kwh) NIL NIL
2)Coal NIL NIL
3)Furnace Oil NIL NIL
4)Others/internal generation NIL NIL
B)TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
I)Research & Development (R & D) NIL NIL
1) Techpology absorption, adoption & NIL NIL
Innovation
C)FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Foreign Exchange Earned (Rs.) NIL NIL
Foreign Exchange used (Rs.) NIL NIL
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Annexure - B

1. Introduction

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had constituted the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company considers human resources as its invaluable
assets. This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and
other employees has been formulated in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read along
with the applicable rules thereto, as amended from time to time. This policy on nomination and
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board
of Directors.

2. Objective and purpose of the policy
The objectives and purpose of this policy are:

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and
independence for appointment of a Director (Executive / Non-Executive) and recommend to the
Board policies relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees. This includes, reviewing and approving corporate goals and objectives relevant to the
compensation of the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), evaluating the CEQO's performance in light
of those goals and objectives, and either as a committee or together with the other independent
directors (as directed by the board), determine and approve the CEO's compensation level based on
this evaluation; and making recommendations to the board with respect to non-CEO executive
officer compensation, and incentive-compensation and equity-based plans that are subject to board
approval;

The policy also addresses the following items: Committee member qualifications; Committee member
appointment and removal; Committee structure and operations; and Committee reporting to the Board.

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of all the Directors on the Board;

To devise a policy on Board diversity; and

To lay out remuneration principles for employees linked to their effort, performance and achievement
relating to the Company’s goals.

Definitions
» ‘Board’ means Board of Directors of the Company.

» ‘Directors’ means Directors of the Company.

» ‘Committee’ means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or
reconstituted by the Board, in accordance with the Act and applicable listing agreements and/or
regulations.
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» ‘Company’ means SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED.

» ‘Independent Director’ means a Director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules.

» ‘Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)’ means-

(1) the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer or the manager and in their absence,
a Whole-time Director;

(i1) the Company Secretary; and

(iii) the Chief Financial Officer

Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core management team
excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the Executive
Directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement as may be amended from time to time shall
have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

General

This Policy is divided in three parts: -
Part — A covers the matters to be dealt with and recommended by the Committee to the Board;

Part — B covers the appointment and nomination; and

Part — C covers remuneration and perquisites etc.

This policy shall be included in the Report of the Board of Directors.
Part— A

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The following matters shall be dealt by the Committee:-

(a) Size and composition of the Board:

Periodically reviewing the size and composition of the Board to ensure that it is structured to make
appropriate decisions, with a variety of perspectives and skills, in the best interests of the Company as a
whole and ensure compliance of various provision of applicable laws and listing agreement;

(b) Directors:
Formulate the criteria determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and
recommending candidates to the Board, when circumstances warrant the appointment of a new
Director, having regard to the range of skills, experience and expertise, on the Board and who will best
complement the Board,;

(c¢) Succession plans:

Establishing and reviewing Board and senior executive succession plans in order to ensure and
maintain an appropriate balance of skills, experience and expertise on the Board and Senior
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Management;

(d) Evaluation of performance:
Make recommendations to the Board on appropriate performance criteria for the Directors.

Formulate the criteria and framework for evaluation of performance of every Director on the Board of
the Company.

Identify ongoing training and education programs for the Board to ensure that Non-Executive Directors
are provided with adequate information regarding the options of the business, the industry and their
legal responsibilities and duties.

(e¢) Remuneration framework and policies:
The Committee is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on:

(i) the remuneration of the Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and KMPs

(i) the total level of remuneration of Non-Executive Directors and for individual remuneration for
Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman, including any additional fees payable for membership
of Board committees;

(iii) the remuneration policies for all employees including KMPs, senior management and other
employees including base pay, incentive payments, equity awards, retirement rights and service
contracts having regard to the need to

(iv) attract and motivate talent to pursue the Company’s long term growth;

(v) demonstrate a clear relationship between executive compensation and performance; and

(vi) be reasonable and fair, having regard to best governance practices and legal requirements.

(vii) The Company’s superannuation arrangements and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in relation to superannuation arrangements; and

(viii) the Company’s remuneration reporting in the financial statements.

PART -B
Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMPs and Senior Management

L Appointment criteria and qualifications

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as Director, KMP or senior management level and recommend to the Board his
/ her appointment.

2. A person to be appointed as Director, KMP or senior management level should possess adequate
qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment. The
Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a
person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

3. A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation for integrity, deep expertise
and insights in sectors / areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the Company’s growth,
complementary skills in relation to the other Board members.

4. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director /
Executive Director who has attained the age of seventy years and shall not appoint Independent
Director who is below age of 21 years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may
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be extended at the discretion of the committee beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of
shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice
for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond Seventy years as the
case may be.

5. A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one company except in its
subsidiary company at the same time. However, a whole-time KMP can be appointed as a Director in
any company, with the permission of the Board of Directors of the Company.

II Term / Tenure
1. Managing Director / Whole-time Director

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director and CEO or Whole-
time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

2. Independent Director

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said
period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity,
either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director Serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
Whole-time (Executive) Director of a listed company.

III. Retirement

The Whole-time Directors, KMP and senior management personnel shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The
Board will have the discretion to retain the Whole-time Directors, KMP and senior management
personnel in the same position / remuneration or otherwise, even after attaining the retirement age,
for the benefit of the Company with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution at
the general meeting of the Company.

PART -C
Policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, KMPs and other employees

A. General

1. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Directors will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.
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2. The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director shall be in accordance with
the provisions of Chapter xiii of the Companies Act, 2013 read with schedule V, and the rules
made thereunder.

3. Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by the
Committee to the Board which should be within the limits approved by the Shareholders in the
case of Managing Director.

4. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director, Chief Financial
Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying them against any
liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration
payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium
paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

B. Remuneration to KMPs and other employees
The policy on remuneration for KMPs and other employees is as below:-
1. Fixed pay

The remuneration and reward structure for employees comprises two broad components - annual
remuneration and long-term rewards. The Committee would determine the remuneration of the Directors
and formulate guidelines for remuneration payable to the employees.

These guidelines are as under:

a) Annual remuneration

Annual remuneration refers to the annual compensation payable to the employees of the Company.
This comprises two parts - a fixed component, and a performance-linked variable component
based on the extent of achievement of the individual’s objectives and performance of the business
unit. Employee is required to determine his/her key result areas for that particular defined role. The
performance-linked variable pay will be directly linked to the performance on individual
components of the performance and the overall performance of the business. An employee’s
variable pay would, therefore, be directly dependent on key performance measures that represent
the best interests of shareholders.

The objective is to set the total remuneration at levels to attract, motivate, and retain high-caliber,
and high potential personnel in a competitive global market. The total remuneration level is to be
reset annually based on a comparison with the relevant peer group globally, established through
independent compensation surveys, from time to time.

b) Long-term rewards
Long-term rewards may be granted to eligible key employees based on their contribution to the
performance of the Company, relative position in the organization, and length of service under the
supervision and approval of the Committee.

The grant, vesting and other scheme details would be formulated from time to time.

These long-term reward schemes are implemented to attract and retain key talent in the industry.
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2. Minimum remuneration to Managing Director/ Chief Executive officer

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company
shall pay remuneration to its Managing Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V
of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous
approval of the Central Government.

C. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors
1. Remuneration

The remuneration payable to each Non-Executive Director is based on the remuneration structure
as determined by the Board, and is revised from time to time, depending on individual
contribution, the Company’s performance, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made there under.

The remuneration to the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Directors) may be paid
within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the
profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Stock options
The Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.
Policy review
This policy is framed based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under.

In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other regulations
which makes any of the provisions in the policy inconsistent with the Act or regulations, then the
provisions of the Act or regulations would prevail over the policy and the provisions in the policy would
be modified in due course to make it consistent with law.

This policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as and when any changes
are to be incorporated in the policy due to change in regulations or as may be felt appropriate by the
Committee. Any changes or modification on the policy as recommended by the Committee would be given
for approval of the Board of Directors.
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Annexure-C
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31¥MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

M/s SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED

1E/4, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi - 110055

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Skyline India Limited(hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.We have not
verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and Books of the Company.

¢) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliances of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. The compliance of the provisions of the
Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31* March, 2021(‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2021 according to the
provisions of:
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(Secretarial Audit Report for F.Y 2020-2021 for M/s Skyline India Limited)

) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(if) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘“SCRA”’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): —

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28 October 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

(/ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.

(vi) Indian Stamp Act, 1899;

(vii) Indian Contract Act, 1872;

(viii) Income Tax Act, 1961 and indirect tax laws;and
(ix) Applicable Labour Laws.

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the basis of
presentationand Reports made byCompliance Auditors of the Company, we further report that the
Company has adequate system to ensure the compliance of the other applicable laws specifically to

the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
. Listing Agreements with Stock Exchanges in India.-

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
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(Secretarial Audit Report for F.Y 2020-2021 for M/s Skyline India Limited)

We further report that

e The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

e Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. Company management is taking steps for maintaining
more proper compliance system.

e All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out by majority as recorded
in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case
may be.

e Due to Covid-19 pandemic, and various preventive and safety guidelines laid down by government,
there was a limited access to documents, registers, files etc. of the company. We had received all
the necessary information over mails and via other electronic means from the company. So, as per
the due-diligence done by us of the available records and documents of company, maintenance of
minutes of board meeting and committees and Statutory Registers of the company are in
compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards and various provisions of The Companies
Act, 2013 to much extent, however, further improvement will be appreciated.

We further report that, based on the information received and records maintained there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Disclaimer:-
e The secretarial audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.
e We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the company.

For CKA & Associates

Company Secretaries

FRN:S2020UP762100

Place:Ghaziabad Sd/-
Date:24/07/2021

Charu Agrawal

Company Secretary
Membership No.:-27510
C.P. No.10853

UDIN: F010853C000682777
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NIDHT BANSAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUMNIANIS
202 Amber Tower Commercial Complex_ Azadpur, Delli- 110033
Telephone 9599154752, 9810516658,
Tealbaff O 1-2767 8007
Eniaili- dnfo_canbe@®yahoo.com

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT ON THE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF M/S
SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 33 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2015,

To The Board of Directors of,
MYS Skvline Indie Limifed
Report on the audit of the Financial Resulis

Orpimion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly financial resulis of “Skyline India
Limited" (the company) for the quarter and the vear ended 31.03.2021 , attached herewith,
being submitted by the company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing
Regulations™),

In our opinion and to the best of our informaticn and according to the explanations given fo
us these financial results:

L. is presented in secordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing
Eegulations in this regard; and

. give a truc and fair view In conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the applicable accounting standards and other accounting
principles generally aceepted in India of the net loss and other comprehensive income
and other financial information for the quarter and vear ended 31.3.202]

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sudit in secordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Aet). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Awodit of the
Financial Results section of oor report, We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartcred Accoumtants of India (“the
ICAT™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit of the financial
resulls under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical respoasibilities in accordance with these requirements and the




Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasiz of Matier

Emphases of matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our awdit of the Stsndalone Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements as o whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters deseribed below to

be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

ANE) Emphasis of Matter Auditor's Response

l. | Amount given 10 Rajesh | Earller the compamy has | given inferest
| Kumnar Sanghi c;.r free advance of Rx 145 crore and Rs
| managerial personnel) | 20000 [akhy to Siwei Rafesh kumar sanghl
towards workshop scecurity | for personal gucrantee given by him fo
and guarantes security. hank, financial nsrinaion and Godwon
securiny.. However even after passing of
sustainable time of about § years neither
| the Company has received  back oy
enmoant mor fove aRy pivesicol Securiny in

irs conrol.
2 The company has sold out | fn the Financial yvear 2014-15 and 2015-14 .
All its Trucks and Trailers, | The Comparny has sold  all itz Trucks and
operational fleets fraiters, operational feers. According to the

infarmation and explamations given (o s,
the company has so far not made amy plarns
to peploce fts fived assels that have been
aodd. There exists a substantiol dowbt that
withow! replacemeni of  ficed assels, the
compamy will be able to continue ax a going
cancern for the foreseeable futire  Further
the compamy docs mol have  secured hay
| presiigions contracts of any pe in ity hand

Management's Hesponsibilities for the Financial Results

This Statement has been prepared on the basis of the Annual financial statements. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial results
that give a true and fair view of the net loss and other financizl information in eccordance
with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generslly accepted in India
and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Repulations. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adeguate secounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing jand detecting frauds
and other imrepularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prodent: and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate intermal financial controls that were operdting effectively for




ensuring the sccuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial results that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue a5 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends 1o liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do s0.

The Board of Directars are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
pProcess,

Auvditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the financial results as a
whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and 1o issue an
auditor’s report that includes our apinion, Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance,
but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or erfor and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the sudit, We also:

»  ldentify and nssess the risks of material misstatement of the financial results, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control,

« Ubtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design
sudit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143{3) {i) of
the aet, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
hes adequate internal finuncial control with reference to financial statement in place
and the operating effectiveness of such control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Direciors.

= Conclude on the approprinteness of the Board of Directors” use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audil evidence obtined, whether a mmerial
uncertainty exists related o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue 85 & going concem. IT we conclude thet 3 material
uncertainly exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s repon o the
related disclosures in the fnancial results or, if such disclosures are inasdequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence ohtained up to




the date of our asditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as & going concem,

* ECvaluate the overall presentation, strucrure and content of the financial results,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial results represent the underlying
transactions and events in o manncr that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant aodit findings, i luding any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them al|
refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 1o bear an our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other matters

The Finencial Results include the results for the guarter ended 31.03.2021 being the
balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the
published audited year to date figures up 1o the third quarter of the carrent financial year
which were subject to limited review by us.

For NIDHI BANSAL & C0O,
Chartered Accountant:

(Pariner)
Membership No. 508641
Audit Firm Reg. No. 022073N
UDIN:- 21508641 AAAACCA864
Date:- 29.06.2021
Place:- Delhi
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ncroase Decronse) is Other Currest Linhlities 143.872.90 765605238 (1,06422023) 246,180,486
Cash geserated from Operation 3358208338 (1,326 678.54)
Iroomse Tax Paicd / (Refund) -
Net Cash from Opernting Act (A) 338820838 (A) (L3678 54)
Iavesting sctivity
leerease ) Decrease in Fived Assety (218687.79) .
Sale of Fined Assets - -
Sale of Investmeats
Divideod feom musal fionds
Change in Capital Weoek in Progress - -
Net Cash from lavesting Activ (B) (218.687.79) (B) -
Finnncing Activities
Proceads from SSaie capdal - »
Repaymess of Long Term Bomowings . -
Tnilcresd yeveived 15,403 00 1,302.027.00
Intesest Pasd (2,417,409 00) (2802 (06.00) (16.598.00) 1,283 429 00
Net Cash from Financing Act {(C) _{2,402,006.00) (C) 1285.429.00
Net (Inceesst ADecrcase) in A, B & C) i Cash & Cash equivaients 737.514.59 {41,249.34)
Opening Cunh & Cash Equilont 86041047 <01,660.83
Closing Cash & Cash Bqailent* 1,597,924 $50,411 87
* Comprises
Cash in bond 1.012,544 57 430 032.87
Choges in band =
Balince with Basks
Curreet Accounts 165,347.10 77,070.93%
Fixed Deposit 320,034.07 103,308.07
1.597.925.74 £50.41
See accompanying notes to the faancial statements 1 (1
1 ~
i Gupla) (Rajesh !4’80/-&1)
Whaole Time Dircector Managing Director
DIN: 00482252 DIN: 98432040
’ ok
N et %
202, Amber Tower, Commercia e
Complex, Azadpur, Defli 110053 (Dinesh Kumar Shindi) ( r Hiri Sanghi)
Place 1 New Delhi Company Secretary CFO
Date : June 29,2021 M.Ne. 48815

UDIN-2150864TAAAACC864
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CYLINE INDIA LIMITED

N: - L51909DL1996PLCO75875
gd. Office: 1E/4, Jhandewalan Extn. New Delhi -110055

TES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 3158T MARCH, 2021
3 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
{ Unsccared, Considered Good)

Security Deposits with Related parties
Security Deposits with Others

4 DEFERRED TAX - On Depreciation

Opening Balance
Add: During the Year

Total

5  CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated.)

Trade Receivables outstanding fur a period exceeding Six moaths

From Refated Parties
Froem (ehers

Other Trade Receivables
From Related Parties
From Others

6 L - CASHE

Cash in hand
Cheques in hand
Balance with Banks
Current Accounts

Fixed Deposit

As at 315t
Mareh, 2021

6,132

6,132

409,625

409,625

1,012,543

265,347
320,034
1,597,926

Asgat 31st
M 20

157,699
157,699

{(30)

(30)

1,569,837

TR

480,033

77,071

303,308

850,412




1

CURRENT TAX ASSETS
Advance Tax/TDS

MAT credit entitilement
Gst Credit Recoverable

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advance Recoverable in cash
or in kind or for value to be received
- From Related Party
- From Ochers

Propaid Interest
Other deposit

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long term debt
Term Loans from Banks (secured)
Term Loans from Financial Institution (secured)

Other Liabifitics

Payable in respect Statitory dues
Advance Agninst sale of Trucks & Trailers
Expenses Payable

Other Payables

TPL - Sugg Construction

12,678
61,616
414,843

TYE

19,283 409
34,025

19,317,434

42,002

424,692
560,000

1,026,694

43,006
61,616

104,622

26,055,045
67.847
42301

26,165,193

5978

316,843
560,000

882,821
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SKVLINE INDIA LIMITED
CIN: - LS1909DL1996PLCO75875

Regd. Office: 1E/11, Jhandewalan Extn. New Delkl -110055

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021

NOTES

13

14

15

16

17

REVENUE FROM OPERATION

Sales of Senvice
Coatract income
Freight & Hire Charges

QIHER INCOME

Interest
Interest accured oa security depasit

EMELOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salary, Wagss and Bonus
Stall wellare
Director remunesution

EINANCE COST

Finnnce Chages
Bank Charges

OTHER EXPENSE

Awditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees

Advertiseiment & publicily

Amount wioff

Business Promoation Exp

Compuiler Expenscs

Conveynnee Expense

Fees stock exchange

Misc expenses

Postage and Courler Exp

Professional Exp

Renlsd expense

Repair & Malntenance/ renovation exp

ROC filling Fees

Short and Excess

She expenscs

Telephooe and Internet exp

Travelling and Coaveyance

4,114,986

As at 3ist
March, 2021

£45.200
845200

13,403

15,403

810,200
49,617
52,000

I1L8IT

2417409
12487

2w

60,000
54,200
228976
235,796
9.600
90,978
120,000
228,534

2,060
135,000
450,000
2,178,041
3,600
20
225347
3,584
£9,250

As nt 3st
Mareh, 2020

2328944
374,350
27032

30,245

|gz|,m
Y

364,610
27,150

66,500
458,660

5,050

5050

60,000
34,300
2,001,663
43,600

85,520
132,440
25,584
149,500

2000
4,305
1,OSR 885
16,598
10,200

3,664,595
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 (F) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date on the standalone Ind AS Financial
statements of SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED as at and for the year ended March 31,
2021)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemmal financial controls over financial reporting M/s Skyline India
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companics Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemnal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit inveolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system

over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s intemal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements duc to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the intermnal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India,

Place: New Delhi
Dated: June 29, 2021 Membership No. 508641
Audit Firm Reg, No. 022073N
UDIN:- 21508641 AAAACC4864



“Annexure B”

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the
year ended on March 31, 2021 of SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED).

I, Fixed Assets:-

a.The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of fixed assets
including quantities details and situation of fixed assets,

b.As explained to us, fixed assets were physically verified by the management at regular

intervals and no discrepancies were found on such verification.

[I. In the Financial year 2014-15 and 2015-16 , The Company has sold all its Trucks
and Trailers, operational fleets. According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has so far not made any plans to replace its fixed assets
that have been sold. There exists a substantial doubt that without replacement of
fixed assets, the company will be able to continue as a going concern for the
foreseeable future Further the company does not have secured nay prestigious
contracts of any type in its hand

I11. According to the Information and explanation provided to us , the Company is in
service sector & does not have any Inventory at any point of time during the year,
Further reporting under this Para is not applicable

IV. The company has not granted unsecured loans to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companics Act 2013
during the year and in our opinion, hence Para () and (b) are not applicable.

V. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act , 2013 in respect of loans & advances , investments, made by the
company during the ycar under review

VI.In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits in contravention of the directives issued by
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under,
where applicable, have been complied with. No order has been passed by the




Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or RBI or any court or any
other tribunal.

VII.  According to the information and explanation given to us, govemment has not
prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the products of the company

VIIL
a. As cxplained to us, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
Statutory Dues applicable to it. Provisions of Provident Fund and Employee’s State
Insurance are not applicable to the company.
b. According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, no undisputed outstanding dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax,
Sales Tax, Custom Duty, and Excise Duty were outstanding as at 31.3.2021 for a
period more than six months from the date, they became payable.
c. According to the Information and explanation given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, there are no dues of sales tax, income tax, custom, wealth
tax, excise duty, cess, which has not been deposited on account of any dispute

IX.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank etc.

X. According to the information and cxplanations given to us the Company is not raised
moncy by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans were applied for the purposes for which those are raised

XI. Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given 10 us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported

during the year of our audit

XIll. The Company has provided / paid managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Companies Act




XIMI. Company is not Nidhi Company, hence further reporting under this clause is not
applicable

XIV. Company has disclosed all transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been

disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards:

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us the company has not

made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year

XVIL.  According to the information and éxplanations given to us the company has not
cntered into any non cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him

XVII. According to the information and explanations given to us The company is not
required to be registered under section 451A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Place: New Delhi h
Dated: June 29, 2021 (Partner)
Membership No. 508641
Audit Firm Reg. No. 022073N
202, Amber Tower, Commercial
Complex, Azadpur, Delhi -110033
UDIN:- 21508641 AAAACC4864



SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE: 1111 JHANDEWALAN EXTN NEW DELHI
CIN: - L§1909DL1996PLCO7S875

mmww

Note No.: 1

A. Accounting Policies

1. General :-
Accounting Policies not specifically referred to otherwise be consistent and in consonance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. Revenue Recognition -
and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounting for on
accrud] basis excepti~
a) lnsummeclaimmaocountodfoxonmeiptbasis
b) Claims lodged against the compaay are sccounted for on payment'basis

3. Fixed Assels -
Fixed assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition including taxes freignt and other
incidental expenses related’ to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets less
depreciation till date.

4, Degprecintion :-
Dq:recialiononleedAssctshnbeenprovidcd onwﬁttmdownvﬂuemahod.onmecost
of Fixed Assats as per the rates, pmvidedinSchoduleﬂofthe Companies Act, 2013

5. Investments =
Company has fixed deposit with Central Bank of India of Rs 3,20,034.07 inclusive of
acerued interest) ot end of year,

6. Inyeutories :-
AstheCompmyisinscrvioesmorthemmmlnvanoﬁeseithuatheopeaingmduﬁng
the year.

‘As there is a loss during the year £0 70 Provision for current tax is made

[. The company has followed the deferred tax accounting method Consequeatly, the
company has accounted for a Deferred Tax Liability at the end. of the year amounting to
RS- 6;‘62/"




Particulars Deferred Tex[Tax effect © Deferred  Tax
iabilities) [timing differences jabilities)
at 1.4.2020 during the year at 31.3.2021
Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Tax Asscl: .
Excess of block of fixed assets as (30.00)
per Income Tax Act as
oompmdtoCompuﬂes Act
Difference in depreciation 6,162.00
Net deferred Tax (30.00) 6,162.00 6,162.00
Asset/(Liability)
|

B. Notes on Accounts

1. 'IheSSlmnnofﬂnecwdhorslsno(

known to the company, hence the information is not

givea.
2. Sundry Creditors, Sundry Debtors, Loans & Advences and Unsecured Loans have been taken
at their fair value subject to and reconciliation.
3. Payments to Auditorsi-
Auditors Remuneration Fy2020-21 |[FY 2019-20
Statutory & Tax Audit Fees 60,000,00 60,000.00
GST 10,800.00 10,800.00
Total 70,800.00 70,800.00
4. Payment to Directorsi-
Directors Remuneration FY 2020-21 | FY 201920
Vandana Gupta 27,000.00 41,900.00
_\._/lghfaoupm 25,000.00 25,000.00
5. Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which co
sacurity other than the personal guarantee of persons

mpany does not hold any




6. Forcign currency transactions :
nmuemfmd@cmmcywmdondmingmcywundamvicwmdhmmdiaely

previous Financial year.

Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
Eaming in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
7. Lease Rental :-

TheCMpanyhunotgichhicleonthcopaaﬁnglemdnﬁnstheyem

%. Related Party disclosure

W&Mﬁ!&w

Related party disclosure as required undes Accounting Standard -18 on ‘Related party
Disclosure' issued by the Chartered Accountants India are given below:

a) Enterprises controlled by key management personnel : (where there were transaction

during the year ) :
Rajesh Kumar Sanghi .. Rent Paid Rs. 4,50,000.00 P.Year : Nil
Skyline Automobiles .- Freight Receipts Rs.70,200.00 P. year : 3,74,350.00

Radharaman skyline infratech pvi 1td ;- Freight Receipts Rs 7,75,000.00 P.Year : Nil

b) Enterprises over which Key management personnel &their relatives are able to
exercise significant influence (where there were transactions during the year) :

Skyline Transport

Skyline Automobiles

Skyline India Logistic

Rajesh Sanghi

Warren Construction Pvi Lid
Radbaraman skyline infratech pvt Itd




¢) Enterprises over which key management personnel & their relatives are able to

exercise significant influence
Current Year ~ Previous vear

i) Funds Received:-
Skyline Automobiles 2592422 £,90,610
Rajesh Sanghi 37,32,164 7.25,000
Skyline Logistics 25,30,852 Nil

if) Funds peid:-
Skyline Automobiles 1,58,196 7,97,952
Rajesh Sanghi 43,43,016 1,75.000

3 as__ Del L ) N d _vicgiui Ente B
Mﬁe company has not received any confirmation from its vendors/
services providers regarding their status of the registration under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating W
amounts unpaid s at the yearend together with interest peid/payable as required under the
said act have not been furnished.

10, Voucher's are partiy prepared and checked

11. Thete are no employees cligible for gratuity Act.

12. As the company’s business activity falls within & single primery business segment viz
‘Transport, the disclosure requirements of Accounting Standards (AS-17) Segment Reporting
{ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are not applicable.

13, There is 0o expmdimrconemployees in reoeiptofmmnnuaiou in excess of limit laid down
under Section 217(24) of the Companies Act 1956.

PLASE

ICDS No. 1 Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
Theﬁmnddmwnamaofmeoompanyhmbemprcpmdipmdmwhhmauy
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAFP). The financial statements have been
wcomplyinallm?.wdalmpemm&waooounﬂngmndudswﬁﬁedmﬂathc
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended and as spplicable from time w©
time) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have




basis.
The sccounting policies adopted in the preparation of finencial statements are cansistent with

those of previous year.
1CDS No. .ll Valuation of Inventories

As there are no inveatories, This point is not applicable

ICDS No. IIT Construction Contracts
msdauscisnmapplicableummsiMOmemcﬁonConmctSisbdngmnied out during
the year under review.

ICDS No. IV Revenue Recognition

RevmhcismwgnimdwtheammthatitiSpmbablemutheecmomicbeneﬁtsmmﬂowwtbc
Company nndtheamoun!canbcreliablymeasm_ed. '

Sale of goods

Revenue 18 rccogmsed when the significant risks andwwardsofowncnhipofmc goods have
passed to the buyer. Sdeisnetofuadediscamtandsalesmx.

Interest
[nterest is recognized on aﬁmepmporﬁonwistnking lnwacwwudwamoummmdinsand
the ratcapplicable. :

[CDS No. V Tangible Fixed Asset :-

As there uenoﬁxodasset!,ﬂﬁspoinlbnoupplicable.
1CDS No. VII Government Grants

Ihis is not applicable to the this concern.

1CDS No. IX Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
(hatnecesmilymkesawbstmﬁnlpaiodofﬁmctogdmdyforitsimenmdmemaalem
capitallzndaspanofthecostofthempectivcassetAllmh«bOHOwlngcostsmexpemcdin
mcpcdodtheyom.BmﬁmMoonsistofiuWandothameanmﬁtyincumin




ICDS No. X Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Apmvisionismoog;ﬁzodwhcnmmisapmemo 'onasamsxﬂtofapnstcveutmditis
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A contingent liability
is recognized for:
(i) apcwentobligaﬁonlhatuimftommstevcntsbmisnotmoogﬁmdasapmvisionbm
sither the possibility that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation is remote O 4 reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be

made.
(ii) npocsiblcobligaﬂonthatnisesanmpmcvenmmdthc'eodstenceofwhichwﬂlbcconﬁxmod
onlybyttwoccmnnoeornomoocmwmofonemmonmwuinﬁmncwcmnmmuy

within the control of the company. :
t assets are neither accounted for nor disclosed in the financial statements.Net

Contingea
realizable nlucistheesﬁmatedsdﬁngptiecmthcmdhmmmofbmmu&!wesﬁmated
cosﬁsafcompleﬁonapdesﬁmtedcostsnecasar}'wmakethcso!e. ¢

For SKYLINE INDIA LIMITED
u . .//a;w
wm%m RAJEEV GUPTA
SANGHI
Partoner Mg Director Whotle Time Director
Membership No. 508641 DIN: 00482040 DIN: 00482252
Audit Firm Regn. No. 022073N 12, Golf Links 324, C3 Shalimar Garden,
New Delbi- 110003 Extension 1,Sahibabad,

202, Amber Tower,
Complex, Azadpur, Delhi -110033

Uttar Pradesh -201010
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Place :- New Delbi Dinesh kumar Skindi Ga Sapghi
Date :- June 29,2021 M.No. 48815
UDIN:- 21508641 AAAACCA864 Company Secretary CFO

Ward 0.6 dil khushal bagh, 12, Golf Links,324
Nesw Delhl

Shahpura, bhilwara 311404 RJ



